



Hopefully,
ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

Evanston
Woman's Club

1894-1895.

EVANSTON, ILLINOIS.

CONTENTS.

Frontispiece—Mrs. Harbert	2
Constitution	7-8
By-Laws	9-11
Order of Business	12
Founder	13
Officers—1889-1895	14-24
History	25-28
Subjects of Meetings—1889-1894	29-33
Program for 1894-'95	34-36
Membership List	37-48
Deceased Members	48

CONSTITUTION.

ART. I.

NAME.

This association shall be called "The Woman's Club of Evanston."

ART. II.

OBJECTS.

Its objects are mutual helpfulness in all affairs of life, and united efforts toward the higher development of humanity.

ART. III.

DEPARTMENTS.

The work of the club shall be done by means of Departments, representing its chosen lines of work.

ART. IV.

The officers shall be a President, four vice-Presidents, a Recording Secretary, a Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer, a Board of nine Directors, and the Chairmen of Departments. These officers shall constitute the Executive Board, and shall be elected by ballot at the annual meeting, except the Chairmen of Departments.

ART. V.

DUTIES OF OFFICERS.

SECTION 1. The Duties of the President and vice-Presidents shall be such as usually pertain to their offices in similar organizations.

SEC. 2. The Recording Secretary shall keep the minutes of each meeting of the Club, and also the minutes of the Executive Board, and read them at the next

meeting. She shall make out from her minutes an order of business for each meeting for the use of the President.

SEC. 3. The Corresponding Secretary shall conduct the correspondence of the Club, send out notices, apprise committees of their appointment, and officers and members of their election.

SEC. 4. The Treasurer shall be the custodian of the funds of the Club, which she shall pay out only upon the order of the Executive Board. She shall take vouchers for all disbursements of money, and shall retain and file them; and also keep an account of all receipts and expenditures. A bond shall be required of the Treasurer in such sums as the Executive Board may elect. A monthly report shall be required of her by the Board and she shall make a full report of the finances of the Club at the annual meeting, the correctness of which must be attested by the Finance Committee.

SEC. 5. The Executive Board shall transact the business referred to it by the Club.

ART. VI.

This constitution may be amended at any meeting of the Club by a two-thirds vote of the members present; the amendments having been approved by the Executive Board, and notice of the intention to amend and a copy of the proposed amendment having been presented by the Executive Board not less than one month previous.

ART. VII.

All questions of order arising not provided for by the constitution shall be decided by Roberts' "Rules of Order."

BY-LAWS.

ART. I.

MEMBERSHIP.

SECTION 1. To become a member of the Club the name and address of the candidate must be submitted to the Executive Board by the proposer on the blanks provided for that purpose, and have the full signature of two additional members as endorsers. No member can propose more than two candidates during a Club year.

SEC. 2. Members of the Executive Board may propose candidates but cannot endorse while holding office.

SEC. 3. Candidates must be recommended by the unanimous ballot of the Executive Board; and confirmed by a majority vote of those present at a regular meeting of the Club.

SEC. 4. Unless a candidate shall signify her acceptance of membership within three months of her notification, such election to membership shall be declared void.

SEC. 5. A name rejected shall not be reconsidered during the official term of that Executive Board.

SEC. 6. No member may propose a candidate until she has been a member of the Club one year.

ART. II.

DUES.

SECTION 1. An entrance fee of two dollars shall be paid upon the acceptance of membership.

SEC. 2. An annual fee of one dollar shall be required of each member at the annual meeting before she shall be entitled to vote. All rights of membership shall be forfeited until such dues are paid.

SEC. 3. Tickets of membership shall be issued to all members upon the payment of annual dues.

SEC. 4. A forfeited membership shall be restored only by the unanimous consent of the Executive Board the payment of back dues being left to the discretion of the Board.

ART. III.
MEETINGS.

SECTION 1. The annual meeting shall be held the third Friday in April and shall be called by individual notification.

SEC. 2. The general meetings of the Club shall be called by individual notification for the third Friday of each month during the Club year, which shall be from the last of September to the last of May inclusive. The time of these meetings shall be between 2:30 and 5 o'clock p. m. Fifteen members shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Club when business is transacted.

SEC. 3. Special meetings of the Club may be called by the Executive Board by individual notification.

SEC. 4. The meeting of the Executive Board shall be on Monday preceding the second Friday of the month. Five shall constitute a quorum.

ART. IV.

The Executive Board shall at its first meeting after the annual meeting appoint the Standing Committees on Program; Rooms; Finance; and Social affairs; the chairmen of these several committees to be appointed from the nine Directors.

ART. V.

SECTION 1. The duty of the Program Committee shall be to arrange a program for the year.

SEC. 2. The duties of the Room Committee shall be to provide and have general charge of the place of

meeting and its properties, and to provide all necessary furnishing for the same.

SEC. 3. The Finance Committee shall approve all bills before payment, except those for rent and light, also audit the accounts of the Treasurer, and report to the Board in January, and to the Club at its annual meeting.

SEC. 4. The Committee on Social affairs shall have charge of social meetings, and shall receive and introduce new members and guests.

ART. VI.

HEADS OF DEPARTMENTS.

SECTION 1. The Secretary of the Club shall call a meeting of each Department for organization. Each Department shall elect its own chairman, who shall arrange and attend stated meetings of her Department. She shall prepare and provide for the work of such meetings as may be under the charge of her Department, of which proposed work she shall make report to the Executive Board at its May meeting. She shall be present at the Club meetings conducted by her Department and superintend the fulfilment of the program. At each meeting of the Executive Board she shall report the progress of work undertaken by her Department, and at the annual meeting the work accomplished during the year.

SEC. 2. Each Department of the Club shall bear its own expenses, so far as such expenses are personal to the Department, and not incurred in providing entertainment for the Club as a whole.

March 17, 1893.



ORDER OF BUSINESS.

CLUB MEETINGS.

1. Minutes of last meeting by Secretary.
2. Reports of Standing Committees.
3. Miscellaneous business.
4. Announcement from President of next regular meeting.
5. Program as per Calendar.
6. Discussion of same.
7. Adjournment.

ANNUAL MEETING.

1. Payment of annual dues by all members present.
2. Reports of Officers.
3. Reports of Standing Committees.
4. Reports of Chairmen of Club Departments.
5. Election of Officers and Directors.
6. Miscellaneous business.
7. Adjournment.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING.

1. Minutes of last meeting by Secretary.
2. Report of Treasurer.
3. Roll call.
4. Unfinished business.
5. Report of Corresponding Secretary.
6. Reports of Chairmen of Departments.
7. New business.
8. Miscellaneous matters.
9. Adjournment.

FOUNDER:

Mrs. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

PRESIDENT:

Mrs. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

1889-1895.

OFFICERS:

 1889-1890.

President.

Mrs. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

Secretary.

Mrs. T. P. STANWOOD.

 1890-1891.

President.

Mrs. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

Vice-Presidents.

Mrs. J. E. MILLER,

Mrs. T. C. HOAG.

Secretary.

Mrs. GEORGE D. MOSELEY.

Treasurer.

Mrs. H. H. KINGSLEY.

Directors.

Mrs. A. D. BISHOP, Mrs. W. A. HAMMOND,

Mrs. E. H. BUEHLER, Mrs. H. B. HILL,

Mrs. E. A. DAWSON, Miss JENNIE LINDGREN.

 STANDING COMMITTEE.

Committee—Program.

Mrs. J. E. MILLER, CHAIRMAN.

1891-1892.

President.

MRS. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT,

Vice-Presidents.

MRS. H. W. ROGERS,

MRS. R. D. SHEPPARD,

MRS. M. M. KIRKMAN,

MISS FRANCES WILLARD.

Recording Secretary.

MRS. WILLIAM L. BROWN.

Corresponding Secretary.

MRS. C. B. FOOTE.

Treasurer.

MRS. G. W. CANDEE.

Directors.

MRS. G. B. MOORE,

MRS. J. E. BURKE,

MRS. W. A. HAMMOND,

MRS. N. C. GRIDLEY,

MRS. MARIA A. VAN ALSTINE.

MRS. WM. E. STOCKTON,

MRS. A. D. BISHOP,

MRS. CHAS. F. GREY,

MRS. L. D. NORTON,

STANDING COMMITTEES.

Committee—Finance and Rooms.

MRS. GEO. D. MOSELEY, MRS. T. P. STANWOOD,

MRS. N. H. WHITTLESEY.

DEPARTMENTS.

World's Fair.

MRS. FRANK THAYER, CHAIRMAN.

Philosophy.

MRS. ELIZABETH B. HARBERT, CHAIRMAN.

Philanthropy and Reform.

MRS. C. H. ZIMMERMAN, CHAIRMAN.

Social Science.

MRS. H. H. KINGSLEY, CHAIRMAN.

1892-1893.

President.

MRS. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

*Vice-Presidents.*MRS. H. W. ROGERS,
MRS. R. D. SHEPPARD,
MRS. T. P. STANWOOD,
MRS. F. THAYER.*Recording Secretary.*

MRS. WILLIAM S. BROWN.

Corresponding Secretary.

MISS SARAH S. DICKINSON.

Treasurer.

MRS. G. W. CANDEE.

*Directors.*MRS. W. E. CLIFFORD, MRS. A. L. BUTLER,
MRS. H. J. EDWARDS, MRS. B. J. MOORE,
MRS. C. H. ZIMMERMAN, MRS. N. C. GRIDLEY,
MRS. WM. F. SINGLETON, MRS. P. L. MCKINNIE,
MRS. J. R. PRINDLE.

STANDING COMMITTEES.

*Committee—Rooms.*MRS. H. H. GAGE, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. C. J. WHITELY, MRS. F. GOULD.*Committee—Program.*MRS. ELIZABETH B. HARBERT, CHAIRMAN,
MRS. F. THAYER, MRS. H. W. ROGERS,
MRS. J. HUBBART, MRS. R. D. SHEPPARD,
MRS. T. P. STANWOOD.

DEPARTMENTS.

*World's Fair.*MISS MARY HARRIS, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. E. L. BROOKS, SECRETARY.*Philanthropy and Reform.*MRS. J. HUBBART, CHAIRMAN.
MISS MARY HARRIS, SECRETARY.
MRS. CHARLES F. BRADLEY, TREASURER.*University Extension.*MRS. R. D. SHEPPARD, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. H. W. ROGERS.

1893-1894.

President.

MRS. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

*Vice-Presidents.*MRS. H. H. KINGSLEY,
MRS. H. W. ROGERS,
MRS. J. R. PRINDLE,
MRS. N. D. HILLIS.*Recording Secretary.*

MRS. CHARLES S. RADDIN.

Corresponding Secretary.

MISS SARAH S. DICKINSON.

Treasurer.

MRS. H. L. BOLTWOOD.

*Directors.*MRS. N. C. GRIDLEY, MRS. E. L. BROOKS,
MRS. WM. S. MATHEWS, MRS. CHAS. H. BETTS,
MRS. GEO. B. REYNOLDS, MRS. CHAS. F. GREY,
MRS. C. J. WHITELEY, MRS. WM. M. GREEN,
MRS. S. E. HURLBUT.

STANDING COMMITTEES.

*Committee—Social.*MRS. CAROLINE J. WHITELEY, CHAIRMAN,
MISS D. S. COOK, MRS. P. L. MCKINNIE,
MISS N. C. GRIDLEY, MRS. WM. L. WELLS.*Committee—Rooms.*MRS. E. L. BROOKS, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. F. GOULD.*Committee—Finance.*

MRS. S. E. HURLBUT, CHAIRMAN.

Committee—Program.

MRS. ELIZABETH B. HARBERT, CHAIRMAN.

*Committee—Calendar.*MRS. J. R. PRINDLE,
MISS SARAH S. DICKINSON.

DEPARTMENTS.

*World's Fair.*MISS MARY HARRIS, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. CHARLES S. RADDIN, SECRETARY.
MRS. W. E. CLIFFORD, TREASURER.*Household Economics.*MRS. CHARLES H. BETTS, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. W. A. S. GRAHAM, SECRETARY.
MRS. N. B. LEWIS, TREASURER.*Emergency Bureau.*MRS. CHARLES F. GREY, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. A. F. TOWNSEND, MRS. H. J. EDWARDS.

1894-1895.

President.

MRS. ELIZABETH BOYNTON HARBERT.

*Vice-Presidents.*MISS MARY HARRIS,
MRS. T. P. STANWOOD,
MRS. H. H. KINGSLEY,
MRS. J. R. PRINDLE.*Recording Secretary*

MRS. CHARLES S. RADDIN.

Corresponding Secretary.

MISS GRACE L. SCRIPPS.

Treasurer.

MRS. H. L. BOLTWOOD.

*Directors.*MRS. A. F. TOWNSEND, MRS. J. E. SCOTT,
MRS. CHAS. F. GREY, MRS. CHAS. H. BETTS,
MRS. N. C. GRIDLEY, MRS. S. E. HURLBUT,
MRS. WM. M. GREEN, MRS. M. C. BRAGDON,
MRS. CAROLINE J. WHITELY,

STANDING COMMITTEES.

*Committee—Social.*MRS. CAROLINE J. WHITELY, CHAIRMAN,
MRS. D. S. COOK, MRS. B. J. MOORE,
MRS. N. C. GRIDLEY, MRS. L. E. HILDRETH.*Committee—Rooms.*MRS. A. F. TOWNSEND, CHAIRMAN.
MRS. F. GOULD.*Committee—Finance.*MRS. S. E. HURLBUT, CHAIRMAN,
MRS. CHAS. F. GREY, MRS. R. B. McMULLEN.*Committee—Program.*MRS. WILLIAM M. GREEN, CHAIRMAN,
MISS ALICE HOUSTON.*Committee—Permanent Building.*MRS. ELIZABETH B. HARBERT, CHAIRMAN,
MRS. J. R. PRINDLE, MRS. H. H. KINGSLEY,
MRS. GEO. B. REYNOLDS, MRS. W. E. CLIFFORD.*Committee—Calendar.*MRS. S. E. HURLBUT, CHAIRMAN,
MRS. H. L. BOLTWOOD, MRS. CHAS. S. RADDIN,
MISS GRACE SCRIPPS.

DEPARTMENTS.

Household Economics.

MRS. H. H. KINGSLEY, CHAIRMAN.
 MRS. W. A. S. GRAHAM, SECRETARY.
 MRS. N. B. LEWIS, TREASURER.

Philanthropy.

MRS. C. F. GREY, CHAIRMAN.
 MRS. C. J. WHITELEY, SECRETARY.

Art and Literature.

MRS. W. E. CLIFFORD, CHAIRMAN.
 MRS. C. B. FOOTE, SECRETARY.

HISTORY.

The first half decade in the life history of the Evanston Woman's Club, has been a complete realization of the faith in the possibilities of organized societies for women, which lent inspiration to the formation of one of the first Woman's Clubs. What Alice Cary accomplished in Norosis, Mrs. Elizabeth Boynton Harbert has continued and amplified in Evanston.

Like Alice Cary, she recognized the important part the latent abilities of woman were destined to play in public affairs, and the necessity of preparation to meet men on their own ground, and from the little coterie which first assembled to formulate plans, the personal inspiration, enthusiasm and wise government of Mrs. Elizabeth Boynton Harbert has largely caused the Club to attain to its present state of healthful activity and influence.

The initial step toward the organization of the Club was taken in the month of March, 1889, when a meeting was held at the residence of Mrs. Harbert. The result of this assemblage was a preliminary organization, of which Mrs. Harbert was elected President and Mrs. T. P. Stanwood, Secretary.

For a time the meetings were informal, different members being called upon to preside. Early in the season of 1890, such a marked growth in membership and interest was perceptible, that a constitution was adopted and regular officers elected.

The programs during the first three years were of an excellent, but miscellaneous character, no particu-

lar line of work being pursued. One of the prominent features of this period was a reception tendered by the Club to the school teachers of Evanston, during which an address was given by Colonel Parker, of Englewood, on "The Relation of the Child to the School and Home." During these years the Club enjoyed the hospitality of its President, Mrs. Harbert, who generously opened her home for its meetings. The spirit of harmony and love that pervades all the work of the Club, is well illustrated by the devotion of the members to the rooms in which the first meetings were held.

In December, 1892, the limit to membership having been removed, the increased attendance made it necessary to procure larger accommodations. The arrangement did not prove a success, however, and so great was the attachment for the rooms associated with the early life of the Club, that when Mrs. Harbert again asked the Club to be her guest, the kind invitation was heartily and gratefully accepted. At the present time, the membership having increased to two hundred and fifteen, it has again become necessary to seek larger rooms. The long-cherished plans to build a permanent home for the Club has already begun to materialize, and it is expected that before another year has passed, the meetings will be held in a house especially planned to meet the requirements of the different branches of work in which the Club is engaged.

In the year 1892 it was decided to join the Federation of Clubs, and Evanston has been ably represented at the two conventions held in Chicago and Philadelphia. In a letter to Mrs. Harbert, Mrs. Elizabeth Cady

Stanton urged the necessity of a clean city before the World's Fair visitors arrived. Although not officially represented on the committee of Chicago women appointed for that purpose, yet Mrs. Henry Wade Rogers, from our Club, embodied all we could ask of worth and judgment in this new departure of woman's work. During the season of 1891-92, after the World's Fair was assured to Chicago, the Club was honored by the presence of Mrs. Potter Palmer, Mrs. Charles Henrotin, Dr. Julia Holmes Smith, Mrs. George Dunlap, Mrs. M. M. Wallace, Miss Maria Hofer, Mr. Lorado Taft, Mr. Schriber and others, who addressed it at various times on the interests and place of women in the coming Exposition. It was decided to form a World's Fair Department, for the instruction of the members in the various works of interest connected with the Fair. This Department begun in 1891, continued through the season of 1894, and proved to be not only of intense interest, but an educator, enabling its members to enjoy intelligently the many wonderful exhibitions of the great Exposition. The club gratefully recognizes that much of the marked success of this Department was due to its Chairman, Miss Mary Harris.

Among the many helpful papers of this season was one by Mrs. Charles Henrotin on "Household Economics." So inspiring did the words of the speaker prove, that plans were at once made to organize a Department for the furtherance of this object. Meetings were held twice each month and papers on "Domestic Science," previously read at the World's Fair Congresses, were presented to the members.

At a meeting of the Club held November 13, 1891, the earnest words of Mrs. A. L. Butler proved the impetus that made the Emergency Hospital an assured success. The ladies of the Club, working with others interested, were enabled by the profits resulting from a Kirmess, to bestow over thirty-six hundred dollars on the cause. During the latter part of the past winter, a bureau of information was supported by the Club, thus enabling many worthy women to find work. At a meeting held September 10, 1894, it was decided that all lines of philanthropic work hitherto carried on by the Club should be combined in one Department, which should be known as the Department of Philanthropy. This Department elected a Chairman and Secretary, and a committee will be appointed to take charge of the different features of work that may come within its scope.

At the same meeting a Department of Art and Literature was formed, a committee being appointed to formulate a program for the year. Many of the charter members of our organization have earnestly worked in the interests of the Club during the five years of its existence, and we desire to always hold their names in loving remembrance, as well as those of Mrs. H. F. Olmsted, Miss Julia A. Ames, Mrs. J. E. Miller and others who labored faithfully with us until taken away.

We would also speak with all honor of Frances E. Willard and Anna A. Gordon, whom, although not seeing often, we love. In these, as well as in the active members of the Club, the intellectual and social life have always exemplified our motto—"In essentials, unity; in non-essentials, liberty; in all things, charity."

SUBJECTS OF MEETINGS.

1889-1890.

- March 2. First Meeting. Organization.
- March 23. How Can Women Best Associate? Paper prepared by Julia W. Howe.
- April 26. Women of the Revolution.
- Oct. 26. Purpose and Origin of Woman's Clubs. Papers prepared by Julia W. Howe and Miss Edith Thomas.
- Nov. 23. Reception to the Lady Teachers of Evanston. Address by Colonel F. Parker, Englewood.
- Jan. 25. Travels in Russia and Finland. Dr. Alice B. Stockham.
- Feb. 15. Discussion of Constitution.
- March 8. The Place of Music in the Education of a Child. Miss Maria Hofer, Chicago.

NOTE—During the first year of the Club the meetings were held every three weeks and were very informal. The members presided in turn, and no permanent records were kept.

1890-1891.

- March 29. Adoption of Constitution and election of Officers. Address, Mrs. Elizabeth B. Harbert. Current Events. Mrs. W. E. Clifford.
- April 18. Henrich Ibsen. Mrs. H. F. Olmsted, Mrs. Mary H. Hull, Mrs. J. E. Zimmerman, Mrs. R. D. Sheppard.
- May 16. Woman's Auxiliary Association Department of the World's Fair. Mrs. M. M. Wallace. Current Events. Mrs. H. H. Kingsley.
- June 4. Dress Reform. Mrs. Elizabeth B. Harbert, Mrs. R. D. Sheppard, Mrs. J. E. Miller.
- Sept. 27. Recent Literature. Mrs. L. H. Talbot, Mrs. P. L. McKinnie.
- Oct. 17. Ideal Homes. Mrs. C. B. Foote, Mrs. W. L. Wells, Mrs. R. B. McMullen, Mrs. P. L. McKinnie, Mrs. J. R. Prindle. Conversation led by Mrs. L. H. Talbot.
- Nov. 7. Abigail Adams. Mrs. Prof. Taylor. Mary Washington. Mrs. H. F. Olmsted. Conversation led by Mrs. W. A. Hammond, Mrs. H. B. Hill, Mrs. W. L. Wells, Mrs. E. A. Lord.
- Nov. 28. Marion Harland. Mrs. N. DeGolyer, Mrs. J. E. Burke, Mrs. A. D. T. Whitney, Mrs. G. B. Reynolds.
- Dec. 19. Helen Hunt Jackson. Mrs. W. F. Singleton, Mrs. J. Cummings, Mrs. O. Marcy, Mrs. E. H. Reed, Mrs. P. L. McKinnie.

- Jan. 10. Evening Reception. Contemporaneous French Sculpture. Mr. Lorado Taft.
- Jan. 23. Whittier. Mrs. R. B. McMullen, Mrs. T. P. Stanwood, Mr. H. J. Edwards.
- Feb. 20. Mrs. Sigourney. Mrs. Elizabeth B. Harbert, Mrs. J. R. Prindle. The Cary Sisters. Mrs. G. D. Moseley.
- March 13. Bancroft. Mrs. W. C. Dickinson. Fiske. Mrs. H. H. Kingsley, Mrs. H. F. Olmsted. Prescott. Mrs. T. P. Stanwood.

1891-1892.

- April 10. Constitution Revised. Election of Officers.
- May 1. Emerson. Mrs. C. B. Foote, Mrs. J. R. Prindle.
- May 22. Margaret Fuller. Mrs. F. Thayer, Mary Lyon. Mrs. Jane E. Miller, Mrs. H. B. Craigin.
- Sept. 29. Address by President, Mrs. Elizabeth B. Harbert.
- Oct. 2. The Isabella Association. Dr. Julia Holmes Smith, Chicago.
- Oct. 23. Woman's Work for the World's Fair. Mrs. Potter Palmer, Mrs. Charles Henrotin, Chicago.
- Nov. 13. Need of an Emergency Hospital. Mrs. A. L. Butler, Mrs. C. H. Zimmerman.
- Dec. 4. The God We Worship. Mrs. Elizabeth B. Harbert. Philosophy of Harmonious Homes. Mrs. W. E. Clifford.

- Jan. 15. Women at the Columbian Exposition. Mrs. F. Thayer, Mrs. P. L. McKinnie.
 Feb. 1. Recent Discoveries Among Cliff Dwellers. Mr. C. W. Green.
 Feb. 26. Bryce's American Commonwealth. Mrs. T. H. Watson, Toynbee Hall. Mrs. H. H. Kingsley.
 March 18. Lowell. Prof. C. W. Pearson.

1892-1893.

- March 25. Annual Meeting. Election of Officers.
 April 16. The Modern Woman. Mrs. Caroline K. Sherman, Chicago.
 May 6. Business meeting in the interest of the Kirmess entertainment for the benefit of the Emergency Hospital.
 May 20. The New Preaching of the Gospel of Charity. Mrs. Louise Dickinson Sherman, Chicago.
 Sept. 30. Revision of Constitution and By-Laws.
 Oct. 28. Ruskin. Rev. N. D. Hillis, D. D.
 Nov. 18. Children's Building at the World's Fair. Mrs. George L. Dunlap, Chicago.
 Dec. 16. Tennyson. Miss Nina Lunt.
 Jan. 20. Congress Auxiliary of the World's Columbian Exposition. Mrs. Charles Henrotin, Chicago.
 Feb. 17. Revision of Constitution and By Laws.
 March 17. Business meeting and acceptance of New Constitution and By-Laws.

1893-1894.

- March 31. Annual meeting. Election of Officers.
 April 21. Modern French Art as Related to the Columbian Exposition. Miss Emily Wheeler.
 May 26. Children's Building at the World's Fair. Mr. Schriber, Miss Maria Hofer, Chicago.
 Nov. 17. The Old Masters and the New. Mrs. Mary H. Ford, Kansas City.
 Dec. 15. Household Economics. Mrs. Charles Henrotin, Chicago.
 Jan. 19. Modern Fiction and Novelists. Mrs. Charles Betts, Mrs. M. C. Bragdon.
 Feb. 16. Modern Poets. Miss Alice Houston, Miss Sarah S. Dickinson.
 March 16. Modern Orators and Oratory. Mrs. P. L. McKinnie.

1894-1895.

- April 20. Annual Meeting. Election of Officers. Modern Philosophy and Philosophers. Mrs. Elizabeth B. Harbert.
 May 25. Modern Science and Scientists. Mrs. E. A. Dawson, Mrs. T. P. Stanwood.
 July 25. Field Day at the summer home of Mrs. Elizabeth B. Harbert, at Lake Geneva.

CLUB CALENDAR.

SEPTEMBER, 1894, TO MAY, 1895.

September.

10th.—Board Meeting.

21st.—Club Meeting.

Subject: Some Superstitions Concerning Women. Dr. Sarah H. Stevenson, Chicago.

Oral Topic: Advantages and Disadvantages of Union Clubs of Men and Women. Leaders in the discussion, Mrs. P. L. McKinnie, Mrs. W. C. Clifford.

October.

8th.—Board Meeting.

19th.—Club Meeting.

Subject; How Can We Help the Condition of Wage Working Women and Children? Mrs. Florence Kelley, Chicago.

Oral Topic: Necessities and Luxuries. Leaders in the discussion, Mrs. M. C. Bragdon, Mrs. R. B. McMullen.

November.

5th.—Board Meeting.

16th.—Club Meeting.

Subject: Household Economics.

December.

10th.—Board Meeting.

21st.—Club Meeting.

Subject: Pictures of two lives. Philips Brooks. Mrs. C. B. Foote. Jay Gould. Miss Mary Harris.

Oral Topic: Benefits and Evils of Riches. Leaders in the discussion, Mrs. S. E. Hurlbut, Mrs. Frank M. Bristol.

January.

7th.—Board Meeting.

18th.—Club Meeting.

Subjects: Hull Home Settlement. Miss Jane Addams. North-western University Settlement. Mrs. H. W. Rogers.

February.

4th.—Board Meeting.

15th.—Club Meeting.

Subject: Women in Relation to the Public Schools. Mrs. Emily H. Miller.

Oral Topic: Manual Training and its Possibilities. Leaders in the discussion, Mrs. W. F. Singleton, Mrs. H. H. Kingsley.

March.

4th.—Board Meeting.

15th.—Club Meeting.

Subject: Household Economics.

April.

8th.—Board Meeting.

19th.—Annual Club Meeting.

May.

6th.—Board Meeting.

17th.—Club Meeting.

Subject: Christian Socialism. Rev. J. F. Loba, D. D.

CLUB MEETINGS.

General Meeting.

Third Friday of each month. 2:30 P. M.

Annual Meeting.

Third Friday in April.

Executive Board Meeting.

Monday preceding second Friday of each month.

Household Economics Department.

Second and Fourth Fridays of the month. 10 A. M.

Art and Literature Department.

Alternate Tuesdays, 2:30 p. m.

ACTIVE MEMBERS.

SEPTEMBER, 1894.

<i>Signature.</i>	<i>Address.</i>
Catharine Aishton.	Miss Catharine Aishton, 1319 Green Bd.
Laura V. Angle.	Mrs. L. V. Angle, 731 Davis St.
L. W. Ambrose.	Mrs. J. C. Ambrose, 2110 Maple Av.
Lena B. Armsby.	Mrs. J. K. Armsby, 1516 Maple Av.
Margareta Ayars.	Mrs. C. G. Ayars, Avenue House.
Lucy Ayars.	Mrs. James Ayars, 1105 Davis St.
S. R. Bates.	Mrs. Thomas Bates, 1428 Maple Av.
Harriet S. Bayliss.	Miss Harriet S. Bayliss, 1426 Hinman Av.
Sarah A. Bayliss.	Mrs. Jeremiah H. Bayliss, 1426 Hinman Av.
Mary M. Betts.	Mrs. Charles H. Betts, 1134 Judson Av.
Elizabeth S. Bliss.	Mrs. Elizabeth S. Bliss, 1322 Benson Av.
Augusta Blunt.	Mrs. John E. Blunt, 1560 Asbury Av.
Nellie Bogert.	Mrs. William B. Bogert, 1818 Sheridan Rd.
Helen E. Boltwood.	Mrs. Henry L. Boltwood, 1218 Benson Av.
A. E. Bosworth.	Mrs. A. O. Bosworth, 309 Davis St.

- Annie E. Boynton. Mrs. Charles T. Boynton,
1007 Greenwood Bd.
- Elizabeth M. Bragdon. Mrs. M. E. Bragdon,
1709 Chicago Av.
- Mollie L. Brooks. Mrs. E. L. Brooks,
264 E. Fifth St., Winona, Minn.
- Mary R. Brooks. Mrs. Noah W. Brooks,
1138 Judson Av.
- F. M. Bristol. Mrs. F. M. Bristol,
1632 Hinman Av.
- Nannie Buckley. Mrs. C. W. Buckley,
1460 Asbury Av.
- Mary Buehler. Mrs. Edward H. Buehler,
1241 Hinman Av.
- Margaret H. Burch. Mrs. C. S. Burch,
1326 Judson Av.
- Frances C. Burdsal. Mrs. Caleb S. Burdsal,
1012 Hinman Av. S.
- Ida L. Calkins. Mrs. Gary G. Calkins,
207 Lake St.
- Elizabeth Candee. Mrs. G. W. Candee,
136 Judson Av.
- N. P. Cayzer. Mrs. Alfred L. Cayzer,
425 Hamilton St.
- Mary Gardner Chandler. Mrs. Charles H. Chandler,
1733 Asbury Av.
- Jennie M. Chapin. Mrs. W. M. Chapin,
1632 Chicago Av.
- Emily H. Chester. Mrs. H. W. Chester,
1326 Chicago Av.
- Mary N. Clapp. Mrs. E. P. Clapp,
1420 Chicago Av.
- Emma C. Clark. Mrs. Alexander Clark,
930 Judson Av., S.

- Mamie Clark. Mrs. Robert Stuart Clark,
1110 Michigan Av.
- Emma Clayton. Mrs. Allen B. Clayton,
1512 Chicago Av.
- Theodosia Cleveland. Mrs. Charles B. Cleveland,
1508 Hinman Av.
- Edith Williams Cleveland. Mrs. W. F. Cleveland,
1143 Judson Av.
- Emily M. Clifford. Mrs. W. E. Clifford,
1618 Chicago Av.
- Emma K. Coble. Mrs. N. Arthur Coble,
1232 Maple Av.
- Julia S. Conkey. Mrs. Lucius W. Conkey,
1704 Chicago Av.
- E. S. Cook. Mrs. David S. Cook,
1432 Forest Av.
- Laura Fales Cragin. Mrs. Henry B. Cragin,
1615 Judson Av.
- Sarah E. Crocker. Mrs. W. H. Crocker,
Hinsdale, Ill.
- Dora Cummings. Mrs. Joseph Cummings,
1838 Chicago Av.
- Anna M. Cushing. Mrs. G. W. Cushing,
615 University Pl.
- Mary O. Dawson. Mrs. Edwin A. Dawson,
1225 Judson Av.
- Laura DeGolyer. Mrs. Nelson DeGolyer,
1817 Hinman Av.
- Harriet A. Delano. Mrs. Henry A. Delano,
1509 Maple Av.
- Sarah S. Dickinson. Miss Sarah S. Dickinson,
1303 Chicago Av.
- A. D. Dickinson. Mrs. William C. Dickinson,
1303 Chicago Av.
- Ida B. Drury. Mrs. M. M. Drury,
1011 Chicago Av., S.
- Sarah Dunham. Mrs. George B. Dunham,
1419 Judson Av.

Ella Dunn. Mrs. Adam E. Dunn,
1803 Chicago Av.
Nellie Burns Eastman. Mrs. Osgood T. Eastman,
323 Hamilton St.
Metta B. Edwards. Mrs. Henry J. Edwards,
1562 Maple Av.
Florence Ely. Miss Florence Ely,
713 Hinman Av., S
Theodosia G. Emery. Mrs. T. G. Emery,
1110 Michigan Av.
Elizabeth Edwards Field. Mrs. Howard Field,
1562 Maple Av.
Anna Green Fisk. Mrs. H. F. Fiske,
1625 Judson Av.
Louie B. Fitch. Mrs. Julian R. Fitch,
1724 Chicago Av
Abbie B. Foote. Mrs. Charles B. Foote,
1622 Oak Av.
Esther French. Mrs. Frederick French,
1202 Hinman Av.
Martha French. Mrs. Orvis French,
1232 Hinman Av.
Mary S. French. Mrs. O. C. French,
1414 Hinman Av.
Emma F. Gage. Mrs. H. H. Gage,
725 Emerson St.
Addie Gellatly. Mrs. Francis Gellatly,
1211 Hinman Av.
Sara W. Gillette. Miss Sara W. Gillette,
1726 Hinman Av.
Ida Gillson. Mrs. Louise K. Gillson,
1554 Oak Av.
Anna A. Gordon. Miss Anna A. Gordon,
1728 Chicago Av.
Myra A. Gould. Mrs. Frank Gould,
1735 Chicago Av.
Caroline B. Graham. Mrs. William A. S. Graham,
1505 Oak Av.

Lotta A. Green. Mrs. William M. Green,
1015 Forest Av., S.
Anna Grey. Mrs. Charles F. Grey,
1508 Forest Av.
Helen F. Gridley. Mrs. Nelson C. Gridley,
1405 Hinman Av.
V. Frances Griffith. Mrs. G. F. Griffith,
1226 Judson Av.
Emily Gunn. Mrs. Alexander H. Gunn,
746 Hinman Av., S.
Jennie W. Hall. Mrs. Earnest R. Hall,
1130 Judson Av.
Jessie Hammon. Mrs. Charles N. Hammon,
1007 Judson Av., S.
Ida L. Hammond. Mrs. W. A. Hammond,
235 Greenwood Bd.
Elizabeth Boynton Harbert. Mrs. W. S. Harbert,
1214 Judson Av.
Gertrude H. Hardin. Mrs. I. N. Hardin,
227 Dempster St.
Mary Clifford Harding. Mrs. P. D. Harding,
1614 Chicago Av.
Mary E. Hardie. Mrs. William T. Hardie,
904 Judson Av.
Mary P. Hardy. Mrs. F. A. Hardy,
1513 Asbury Av.
Marry Harris. Miss Mary Harris,
614 Church St.
Emily Henderson. Mrs. Ed. G. Henderson,
2703 Sheridan Rd.
Adelaide Hess. Mrs. Daniel W. Hess,
1614 Oak Av.
Martha W. Hildreth. Mrs. Leslie E. Hildreth,
1228 Judson Av.
Mary Hill. Mrs. H. B. Hill,
1325 Benson Av.

Annie P. Hillis.
 Susie Hills.
 Eliza Hinsdale.
 Rose B. Hitt.
 Maria L. Hoag.
 Abbie S. Holbrook.
 Nellie George Hollett.
 Alice M. Houston.
 Elizabeth E. Houston.
 Florence R. Houston.
 Kate D. Hubbard.
 Eliza B. Hull.
 Mary W. Hurlbut.
 Emma Hyde.
 Anna S. Isbester.
 Katharine A. Jackson.
 Elizabeth D. Jernegan.
 Louise H. Keith.
 Nellie Fitch Kingsley.
 Mrs. N. D. Hillis,
 1827 Orrington Av.
 Mrs. Erasmus W. Hills,
 238 Maple St., S.
 Mrs. H. W. Hinsdale,
 1723 Asbury Av.
 Mrs. I. R. Hitt, Jr.,
 2625 Sheridan Rd.
 Mrs. T. C. Hoag.
 Mrs. F. A. Holbrook,
 1323 Hinman Av.
 Mrs. R. P. Hollett,
 1142 Hinman Av.
 Miss Alice M. Houston,
 1426 Forest Av.
 Mrs. E. E. Houston,
 1426 Forest Av.
 Miss Florence R. Houston,
 1426 Forest Av.
 Mrs. Joseph Hubbard,
 428 Greenwood Bd.
 Mrs. A. B. Hull,
 1422 Hinman Av.
 Mrs. S. E. Hurlbut,
 1224 Greenwood Bd.
 Mrs. E. A. Hyde,
 1720 Asbury Av.
 Mrs. Tunis Isbester,
 1223 Grove St.
 Miss Katharine A. Jackson,
 1813 Hinman Av.
 Mrs. Charles Jernegan,
 1144 Michigan Av.
 Mrs. H. A. Keith,
 1229 Hinman Av.
 Mrs. Homer H. Kingsley,
 1229 Judson Av.

Nancy Gill Kirk.
 Fannie Spencer Kirkman.
 Annette C. Lacey.
 Fannie Larimer.
 Carrie M. Learned.
 Lillie I. Lewis.
 Jennie Lindgren.
 Nellie R. Lord.
 Mary Helen Lyons.
 Mary C. Magill.
 Sara Bailey Mann.
 Lora C. Marsh.
 F. E. Mathews.
 Julia Leslie Maynard.
 Mary F. McCrillis.
 Celestia G. McKinnie.
 Katharine V. McMullen.
 Mary W. Merrell.
 Ellen B. Merwin.
 Mrs. N. G. Kirk,
 1426 Chicago Av.
 Mrs. M. M. Kirkman,
 1429 Ridge Av.
 Mrs. E. S. Lacey,
 305 Davis St.
 Mrs. Joseph M. Larimer,
 1214 Maple Av.
 Mrs. E. W. Learned,
 512 Greenwood Bd.
 Mrs. N. B. Lewis,
 The Essex.
 Miss Jennie Lindgren,
 1314 Forest Av.
 Mrs. William S. Lord,
 1621 Oak Av.
 Mrs. Joseph M. Lyons,
 1463 Sherman Av.
 Mrs. William C. Magill,
 1432 Wesley Av.
 Mrs. W. B. Mann,
 1570 Asbury Av.
 Mrs. W. D. Marsh,
 1719 Hinman Av.
 Mrs. W. S. B. Mathews,
 807 Chicago Av., S.
 Mrs. W. H. Maynard,
 5552 Drexel Av., Chicago.
 Dr. Mary F. McCrillis,
 1618 Chicago Av.
 Mrs. P. L. McKinnie,
 721 Sheridan Rd., S.
 Mrs. R. B. McMullen,
 1021 Grove St.
 Mrs. Morris Merrell,
 1890 Ridge Av.
 Mrs. Orland H. Merwin,
 1730 Chicago Av.

Emily Huntington Miller. Mrs. Emily H. Miller,
Woman's Hall.
Clara N. Mitchell. Mrs. Charles P. Mitchell,
1812 Chicago Av.
Catharine Moore. Mrs. Birney J. Moore,
1734 Asbury Av.
Alice Kent Moseley. Mrs. George D. Moseley,
1563 Ridge Av.
Cleora S. Murray. Mrs. James S. Murray,
320 Greenwood Bd.
Viola W. Nichols. Mrs. F. W. Nichols,
932 Hinman Av., S.
Blanch R. Northup. Mrs. C. W. Northup,
614 Hinman Av.
Emily M. Noyes. Miss Emily M. Noyes,
702 Orrington Av.
Jane S. Oakes. Mrs. J. S. Oakes,
518 Church St.
Elvira L. Parker. Mrs. Edward O. Parker,
417 Maple Av.
Jennie G. Parkes. Miss Jennie G. Parkes,
1014 Maple Av.
S. H. Pearson. Mrs. C. W. Pearson,
1930 Sheridan Rd.
Harriet L. Peck. Miss Harriet L. Peck,
Kenova, W. Va.
Mary A. Peck. Miss Mary A. Peck,
Kenova, W. Va.
Irene B. Phillips. Mrs. Irene B. Phillips,
1570 Asbury Av.
Anna Poole. Mrs. C. Clarence Poole,
943 Michigan Av., S.
C. S. Poppenhusen. Mrs. C. S. Poppenhusen,
1005 Forest Av.
Florence Holbrook Poucher. Mrs. Barent George Poucher,
1323 Lake St.

Isabel A. H. Prindle. Mrs. Jason R. Prindle,
1622 Wesley Av.
Kate C. Quinlan. Miss Kate C. Quinlan,
331 Davis St.
Belle A. Raddin. Mrs. Chas. S. Raddin,
2032 Orrington Av.
Carrie W. Raymond. Mrs. Fred D. Raymond,
408 Greenwood Bd.
Isabella J. Reed. Mrs. Edward H. Reed,
1454 Maple Av.
Martha B. Reynolds. Mrs. Geo. B. Reynolds,
1838 Hinman Av.
M. Frances Rhodes. Mrs. George Rhodes,
1027 Judson Av.
Emma L. S. Rice. Mrs. Byron Rice,
1945 Orrington Av.
Mary H. Rickards. Mrs. W. S. Rickards,
1324 Forest Av.
Emma Winner Rogers. Mrs. Henry Wade Rogers,
1958 Sheridan Rd.
Rebecca C. Sanders. Mrs. A. D. Sanders,
1227 Benson Av.
Helen M. Sargent. Mrs. Geo. M. Sargent,
1502 Hinman Av.
Caroline C. Scales. Mrs. C. C. Scales,
1326 Chicago Av.
Grace Locke Scripps. Miss Grace L. Scripps,
1022 Grove St.
Fannie M. Scripps. Mrs. George B. Scripps,
1022 Grove St.
Anna Seavey. Mrs. D. H. Seavey,
1138 Sheridan Rd.
Jane R. Shaw. Mrs. George S. Shaw,
614 Chicago Av.
Virginia Loring Sheppard. Mrs. Robt. D. Sheppard,
1408 Sheridan Rd.

M. E. Sherman, Mrs. M. E. Sherman,
1203 Hinman Av.

Gertrude M. Singleton. Mrs. W. F. Singleton,
Touhy Av., Rogers Park, Ill.

Louisa C. Stanford. Mrs. E. Stanford,
1513 Forest Av.

Louise Brockway Stanwood. Mrs. T. P. Stanwood,
1221 Hinman Av.

Eliza L. Stockton. Mrs. W. E. Stockton,
1513 Hinman Av.

Nellie Streeter. Mrs. Herbert Streeter,
1246 Hinman Av.

Elizabeth Strong. Mrs. John W. Strong,
608 Maple Av.

Lizzie W. Sullivan. Mrs. A. N. Sullivan,
1021 Judson Av.

Alice B. Stockham. Dr. Alice B. Stockham,
921 Ridge Av.

Cora L. Stockham. Miss Cora L. Stockham,
921 Ridge Av.

Harriet E. Scott. Mrs. John Edwin Scott,
1404 Judson Av.

Mary S. Taggart. Mrs. Mary S. Taggart,
518 Church St.

Evelyn Seavey Thomas. Mrs. Herbert A. Thomas,
1138 Sheridan Rd.

Jennie W. Thompson. Mrs. Geo. H. Thompson,
1203 Chicago Av.

Emma Thompson. Miss Emma Thompson,
1405 Chicago Av.

Mary W. Topliff. Mrs. Wm. B. Topliff,
1318 Hinman Av.

Laura Tower. Mrs. James. A. Tower,
Ft. Madison, Iowa.

Sarah P. Townsend. Mrs. A. F. Townsend,
1719 Hinman Av.

Anna Turner. Mrs. J. C. Turner,
1026 Grove St.

Maria A. Van Alstine. Mrs. M. A. Van Alstine,
1309 Davis St.

Mary C. Van Benschoten. Mrs. Samuel Van Benschoten,
1419 Chicago Av.

Emma M. Vandercook. Mrs. E. M. Vandercook,
713 Church St.

Delia Walworth. Mrs. Nath. H. Walworth,
645 University Pl.

Ella Bradley Ward. Mrs. Joseph F. Ward,
1725 Hinman Av.

Ellen C. Ward. Mrs. L. C. Ward,
1726 Hinman Av.

Emma H. Watson. Miss Emma H. Watson,
1039 Chicago Av., S.

Mary H. Watson. Mrs. Thomas H. Watson,
1039 Chicago Av., S.

Harriet Z. Weeks. Mrs. B. F. Weeks,
1422 Forest Av.

Mary Wells. Mrs. Wm. L. Wells,
1430 Chicago Av.

Caroline J. Whitely. Mrs. Caroline J. Whitely,
1813 Hinman Av.

Marie Huse Wilder. Mrs Marie Huse Wilder,
1816 Chicago Av.

Jane Hutchins White. Miss Jane Hutchins White,
421 Greenwood Bd.

Nellie H. Wilson. Mrs. S. Frank Wilson,
1200 Judson Av.

Francis B. Wilkins. Mrs. J. N. Wilkins,
Ravenswood, Ill.

Francis E. Willard.	Miss Francis E. Willard, 1728 Chicago Av.
Marcia S. Willis	Mrs. E. E. Willis, 210 Davis St.
Alice J. Wilson.	Mrs. H. R. Wilson, 1516 Forest Av.
Annie E. Wilson.	Mrs. Wm. C. Wilson, 1515 Chicago Av.
Amelia Wing,	Mrs. Russell Merritt Wing, 1423 Judson Av.
Carrie L. Woodford.	Mrs. Philip R. Woodford, 1327 Chicago Av.
Fannie L. Wiswall.	Miss Fannie L. Wiswall, 916 Sheridan Rd.
Ellen L. Woodward.	Mrs. E. E. L. Woodward, 2031 Sherman Av.
Ada S. Woolfolk.	Miss Ada Woolfolk, 1808 Chicago Av.
Anna C. Woolfolk.	Mrs. A M. Woolfolk, 1808 Chicago Av.
Mary A. Wyckoff.	Mrs. W. M. Wyckoff, 615 Lake St.
Jane Eggleston Zimmerman.	Mrs. C. H. Zimmerman, Sr. 561 Simpson Pl.

IN MEMORIAM.

Mrs. E. A. Lord,	- - - - -	1890
Mrs. John Quinlan,	- - . - .	1890
Miss Julia A. Ames,	- - - - -	1891
Mrs. H. F. Olmsted,	- - - - -	1892
Mrs. J. E. Miller,	- - - - -	1894